

City and County of San Francisco

Meeting Minutes

Budget and Finance Committee

City Hall 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place San Francisco, CA 94102-4689

Members: Sandra Lee Fewer, Shamann Walton, Rafael Mandelman

Clerk: Linda Wong (415) 554-7719

Regular Meeting	Wednesday, September 30, 2020	10:30 AM	
		Regular Meeting	

Present: 3 - Sandra Lee Fewer, Shamann Walton, and Rafael Mandelman

The Budget and Finance Committee met in regular session through videoconferencing, and provided public comment through teleconferencing, on Wednesday, September 30, 2020, with Chair Sandra Lee Fewer presiding. Chair Fewer called the meeting to order at 10:33 a.m.

Remote Access to Information and Participation

In accordance with Governor Newsom's Executive Order No. N-33-20 declaring a State of Emergency regarding the COVID-19 outbreak and Mayor London N. Breed's Proclamation declaring a Local Emergency issued on February 25, 2020, including the guidance for gatherings issued by the San Francisco Department of Public Health Officer, aggressive directives were issued to reduce the spread of COVID-19. On March 17, 2020, the Board of Supervisors authorized their Board and Committee meetings to convene remotely (via Microsoft Teams) and will allow remote public comment via teleconference. Visit the SFGovTV website at (www.sfgovtv.org) to stream the live meetings, or to watch meetings on demand. Members of the public are encouraged to participate remotely via detailed instructions on participating via teleconference available at: https://sfbos.org/remote-meeting-call.

Members of the public may participate by phone or may submit their comments by email to: linda.wong@sfgov.org; all comments received will be made a part of the official record. Regularly-scheduled Budget and Finance Committee Meetings begin at 10:30 a.m. every Wednesday of each month. Committee agendas and their associated documents are available at https://sfbos.org/committees.

ROLL CALL AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

On the call of the roll, Chair Fewer, Vice Chair Walton, and Member Mandelman were noted present. A quorum was present.

AGENDA CHANGES

There were no agenda changes.

REGULAR AGENDA

200965 [Real Property Lease - Twin Peaks Petroleum, Inc. - 598 Portola Drive - \$200,200 Per Year Base Rent]

Sponsor: Yee

Resolution authorizing the lease of real property located at 598 Portola Drive with Twin Peaks Petroleum, Inc., a California corporation, doing business as Twin Peaks Auto Care, successor-in-interest to Michael Gharib, for an initial 25-year term at a base rent of \$200,200 per year with annual adjustments of three percent, with one five-year option to extend, to commence upon approval by the Board of Supervisors and Mayor, in their respective sole and absolute discretion. (Real Estate Department)

(Fiscal Impact)

08/18/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

09/23/20; CONTINUED. Heard in Committee. Speakers: Jen Low (Office of Supervisor Norman Yee); Claudia Gorham (Real Estate Division); Michael Gharib, Owner (Twin Peaks Petroleum, Inc.); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion. George; spoke in support of the hearing matter.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Norman Yee, President (Board of Supervisors); Anne Pearson (Office of the City Attorney); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion. George Weddingwood; spoke in support of the hearing matter. Paul Leung; Christopher Peterson; Matt Buzena; Ray; Patrick Charber; Chante Sing; Eric; Sam Douch; Speaker; Stacey Ramtucker; Javiar Ramon; Speaker; Robin Cutler; Cliff Barber; Mr. Pudon; Steve Marjel; Adam Buck; Zack; Sara Ovalvie; Francisco Da Costa; Chay Bing; Andrew Bayder; spoke in opposition to the hearing matter. Sara Greenwal; spoke neither in support nor opposition to the hearing matter.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be REFERRED WITHOUT RECOMMENDATION to the Board of Supervisors meeting of October 6, 2020. The motion carried by the following vote:

200876 [Home Detention Electronic Monitoring Program Rules and Regulations and Program Administrator's Evidence of Financial Responsibility - FY2020-2021]

Resolution approving the Sheriff Office's home detention and electronic monitoring program rules and regulations; and approving evidence of financial responsibility demonstrated by program administrator, Sentinel Offender Services, LLC, for FY2020-2021. (Sheriff)

07/28/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

08/11/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

09/02/20; CONTINUED. Heard in Committee. Speakers: Crispin Hollings and Jonathan Kuhns (Sheriff's Department); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion. Carolyn Goossen (Public Defender's Office); Zack Goldman; spoke neither in support nor opposition to the hearing matter. Molly Hernandez; Nick Dransie; Edward Hernandez; Izzy Almund; Jeffrey Straut; spoke in opposition to the hearing matter.

09/16/20; CONTINUED. Heard in Committee. Speakers: None.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Crispin Hollings (Sheriff's Department); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion. Mohammed Chat; Dorothy Bass; Michael Lard; Diana Blog; spoke in opposition to the hearing matter. Melissa Hernandez; spoke neither in support nor opposition to the hearing matter.

Vice Chair Walton moved that this Resolution be CONTINUED to the Budget and Finance Committee meeting of October 7, 2020. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Fewer, Walton, Mandelman

200947 [Administrative Code Waivers - SFMTA Potrero Yard Modernization Project -Project Delivery Procedure] Sponsors: Mayor; Walton

Ordinance waiving certain procurement and contracting requirements in Chapters 6, 14B, and 21 of the Administrative Code, as applied to the Potrero Yard Modernization Project (Project), to authorize the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA) to: procure design, construction, finance, maintenance, asset management, and other services (Joint Development Services) for the Project utilizing a joint development delivery method; select a developer team utilizing a best-value selection process; and, provided that the City elects to proceed with the Project after completing its review under the California Environmental Quality Act, exempt agreements for Joint Development Services from certain contracting requirements in Chapters 6, 14B, and 21 of the Administrative Code, but requiring the payment of prevailing wages, implementation of a local business enterprise utilization program, and compliance with the City's local hire policy and first source hiring Ordinance. (Fiscal Impact)

08/18/20; ASSIGNED UNDER 30 DAY RULE to Budget and Finance Committee, expires on 9/17/2020.

09/22/20; SUBSTITUTED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee. Mayor Breed introduced a substitute Ordinance bearing a new title.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: None.

Vice Chair Walton moved that this Ordinance be CONTINUED TO CALL OF THE CHAIR. The motion carried by the following vote:

201016 [Modification of Easement Deed - Koret Foundation - SFPUC Parcel 22 - Located in South San Francisco, California]

Resolution approving the First Amendment to Easement Deed between the Koret Foundation and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC), for the purpose of clarifying and amending the respective rights of the parties to the Grant Deed, dated April 6, 1907, (Original Deed) with respect to SFPUC Parcel 22 located between West Orange Avenue and Southwood Drive in South San Francisco, California; and authorizing the Director of Property and/or the SFPUC's General Manager to execute documents, make certain modifications, and take certain actions in furtherance of this Resolution, as defined herein. (Public Utilities Commission)

09/04/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

09/15/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Anthony Bardo (Public Utilities Commission); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion. Francisco Da Costa; spoke neither in support nor opposition to the hearing matter.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Fewer, Walton, Mandelman

201017 [Quitclaim Deed for Transfer of Existing Street, Sunnyvale, California - City of Sunnyvale - \$0]

Resolution authorizing the Director of Property to execute a Quitclaim Deed for the conveyance of real property by the City and County of San Francisco to the City of Sunnyvale, commonly known as a portion of Manzano Way, Assessor's Parcel Block No. 104-28-069, (the Existing Street) free of charge; adopting findings under the California Environmental Quality Act; adopting findings that the conveyance is consistent with the General Plan, and the priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1; adopting findings declaring that real property is "exempt surplus land;" and authorizing the Director of Property to execute any documents, make certain modifications, and take certain actions in furtherance of this Resolution, as defined herein. (Public Utilities Commission)

09/04/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

09/15/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speaker: Rosanna Russell (Public Utilities Commission); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

201065 [Accept and Expend Grant - San Francisco Bay Restoration Authority - Heron's Head Park Shoreline Resilience Project Phase I - \$297,000] Sponsors: Mayor; Walton

Resolution authorizing the Port of San Francisco to accept and expend a grant in the amount of \$297,000 from the San Francisco Bay Restoration Authority to fund Phase I of the Heron's Head Park Shoreline Resilience Project from October 2020, through December 2025. (Port)

09/15/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speaker: Carol Bach (Port); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be AMENDED on Page 1, Line 6, by replacing '2025' with '2027'. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Fewer, Walton, Mandelman

Resolution authorizing the Port of San Francisco to accept and expend a grant in the amount of \$297,000 from the San Francisco Bay Restoration Authority to fund Phase I of the Heron's Head Park Shoreline Resilience Project from October 2020, through December 2027. (Port)

Vice Chair Walton moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED AS AMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Fewer, Walton, Mandelman

200979 [Accept and Expend In-Kind Gift - Retroactive - Deloitte Consulting LLP -Strategic Planning Sessions - Estimated at \$40,000] Sponsor: Fewer

Resolution retroactively authorizing the Office of the District Attorney to accept and expend an in-kind gift estimated at \$40,000 from Deloitte Consulting LLP for strategic planning sessions from July 2020, through September 2020. (District Attorney)

08/25/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speaker: Tara Anderson (Office of the District Attorney); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

201064 [Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds - 53 Colton Street - Not to Exceed \$33,520,000]

Sponsor: Mayor

Resolution authorizing the issuance, sale and delivery of multifamily housing revenue bonds in one or more series in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed \$33,520,000 for the purpose of providing financing for the acquisition and construction of a 96-unit multifamily rental housing project located at 53 Colton Street; approving the form of and authorizing the execution of an indenture of trust providing the terms and conditions of the bonds; approving the form of and authorizing the form of and authorizing the execution of a regulatory agreement and declaration of restrictive covenants; approving the form of and authorizing the execution of certain fees; approving modifications, changes, and additions to the documents; ratifying and approving any action heretofore taken in connection with the bonds and the project, as defined herein; granting general authority to City officials to take actions necessary to implement this Resolution, as defined herein; and related matters, as defined herein.

09/15/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speaker: Joyce Lim (Mayor's Office of Housing and Community Development); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Fewer, Walton, Mandelman

201063 [Standard Agreement - California Department of Housing and Community Development - Homekey Grant - Hotel Granada - Not to Exceed \$45,000,000] Sponsors: Mayor; Peskin

Resolution authorizing the Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing (HSH) to execute a Standard Agreement for up to \$45,000,000 of Homekey grant funds from the California Department of Housing and Community Development to Episcopal Community Services for the acquisition of the Hotel Granada at 1000 Sutter Street for Permanent Supportive Housing, for a term to be determined; approving and authorizing HSH to commit up to \$23,000,000 in permanent funds and additional operational subsidies over five years to satisfy local match requirements; and affirming the Planning Department's determination under the California Environmental Quality Act. (Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing)

(Fiscal Impact)

09/15/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Gigi Whitney (Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion. Speaker; Rebecca Foster; spoke in support of the hearing matter.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Fewer, Walton, Mandelman

Member Mandelman was noted absent at 12:45 p.m.

Supervisor Mandelman Excused from Attendance

Chair Fewer moved to excuse Supervisor Mandelman from the Budget and Finance Committee meeting of September 30, 2020, beginning at 12:50 p.m. and for the remainder of the meeting. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 2 - Fewer, Walton Excused: 1 - Mandelman

201058 [Health Service System Dental Plans and Contribution Rates - Calendar Year 2021]

Sponsor: Preston

Ordinance approving Health Service System dental plans and contribution rates for calendar year 2021.

(Fiscal Impact)

(Pursuant to Charter, Section A8.422, this matter shall require a vote of three-fourths (9 votes) of all members of the Board of Supervisors to approve passage of this Ordinance.)

09/15/20; ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee. 09/21/20 - President Yee waived the 30-day rule, pursuant to Board Rule No. 3.23.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Jen Synder (Office of Supervisor Dean Preston); Abbie Yant, Executive Director (Health Service System); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Ordinance be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Chair Fewer requested that File Nos. 200178 through 200207 be called together.

200178 [Concession Lease Amendment - Tastes on the Fly SFO International, LLC dba Napa Farms Market; Mustards Grill; and Samovar Tea - Extension of Base Operating Term - \$910,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the International Terminal Food and Beverage Concessions Lease 3, Lease No. 16-0014, between Tastes On The Fly SFO International, LLC, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years for one pre-security concession location, Samovar Tea, for a total term of July 1, 2017, through June 30, 2026, with three one-year options to extend, and two post-security concession locations, Napa Farms Market for a total term of June 1, 2018, through July 31, 2030, and Mustard Grill, for a total term of August 1, 2018, through July 31, 2030, with two one-year options to extend, with no change to the minimum annual guarantee of \$910,000. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 2 - Fewer, Walton Excused: 1 - Mandelman

200179 [Concession Lease Amendment - Elevated Tastes SFO Inc. dba Tomokazu -Extension of Base Operating Term - \$165,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee] Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the International Terminal Food and Reverage

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the International Terminal Food and Beverage Concession Lease 5, Lease No. 16-0016, between Elevated Tastes SFO Inc. dba Tomokazu, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years for a total term of June 1, 2017, through May 31, 2029, with no changes to the minimum annual guarantee of \$165,000 with two one-year options to extend. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

200180 [Concession Lease Amendment - SSP America, Inc. dba 1300 on Fillmore -Extension of Base Operating Term - \$279,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 2 to the International Terminal Food and Beverage Concession Lease 7, Lease No. 16-0017, between SSP America, Inc. dba 1300 on Fillmore, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years for a total term of June 1, 2017, through May 31, 2029, with no change to the minimum annual guarantee of \$279,000 with two one-year options to extend. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 2 - Fewer, Walton Excused: 1 - Mandelman

200181 [Concession Lease Amendment - Joe & the Juice New York, LLC dba Joe & the Juice - Extension of Base Operating Term - \$150,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee] Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the International Terminal Food and Beverage Concession Lease 8, Lease No. 16-0018, between Joe & The Juice New York, LLC, dba Joe & the Juice, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years for a total term of January 1, 2017, through December 31, 2028, with no change to the minimum annual guarantee of \$150,000 with two one-year options to extend. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

200182 [Concession Lease Amendment - Midfield Concession Enterprises, Inc. dba Roasting Plant - Extension of Base Operating Term - \$125,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the International Terminal Food and Beverage Concessions Lease 10, Lease No. 16-0020, between Midfield Concession Enterprises, Inc., dba Roasting Plant, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years for a total term of September 1, 2017, through August 31, 2026, with no change to the minimum annual guarantee of \$125,000 with three one-year options to extend. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 2 - Fewer, Walton Excused: 1 - Mandelman

200183 [Concession Lease Amendment - Bayport Concessions, LLC dba Koi Palace Express - Extension of Base Operating Term - \$155,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the International Terminal Food and Beverage Concessions Lease 11, Lease No. 16-0021, between Bayport Concessions, LLC, dba Koi Palace Express, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years for a total term of May 1, 2017, through April 30, 2026, with no changes to the minimum annual guarantee of \$155,000 with three one-year options to extend. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

200184 [Concession Lease Amendment - San Francisco Soup Company dba Ladle & Leaf - Extension of Base Operating Term - \$250,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the Terminal 3 Boarding Area F Food and Beverage Concession Lease 1, Lease No. 16-0309, between San Francisco Soup Company, dba Ladle & Leaf, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years for a total term October 1, 2018, through September 30, 2026, with no changes to the minimum annual guarantee of \$250,000 with two one-year options to extend. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 2 - Fewer, Walton Excused: 1 - Mandelman

200185 [Concession Lease Amendment - Host International, Inc. dba Super Duper Burger - Extension of Base Operating Term - \$250,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the Terminal 3 Boarding Area F Food & Beverage Concession Lease 2, Lease No. 16-0310, between Host International, Inc. dba Super Duper Burger, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years for a total term of September 1, 2018, through August 31, 2026, with no changes to the minimum annual guarantee of \$250,000 with two one-year options to extend. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

200186 [Concession Lease Amendment - Paradies Lagardere @ SFO, LLC dba Limon Rotisserie - Extension of Base Operating Term - \$250,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the Terminal 3 Boarding Area F Food and Beverage Concession Lease 3, Lease No. 16-0311, between Paradies Lagardere @ SFO, LLC, dba Limon Rotisserie, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years for a total term of March 1, 2018, through February 28, 2026, with no changes to the minimum annual guarantee of \$250,000 with two one-year options to extend. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 2 - Fewer, Walton Excused: 1 - Mandelman

200187 [Concession Lease Amendment - Amoura International, Inc. dba Amoura Café -Extension of Base Operating Term - \$250,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the Terminal 3 Boarding Area F Food and Beverage Concession Lease 4, Lease No. 16-0312, between Amoura International, Inc. dba Amoura Café, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years for a total term of April 1, 2018, through March 31, 2026, with no changes to the minimum annual guarantee of \$250,000 with two one-year options to extend. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

200188 [Concession Lease Amendment - Tastes on the Fly San Francisco, LLC dba San Francisco Giants Clubhouse - Extending Base Operating Term - \$650,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the Terminal 3 Boarding Area F Food and Beverage Concession Lease 7, Lease No. 16-0315, between Tastes on The Fly San Francisco, LLC, dba San Francisco Giants Clubhouse, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years for a total term of April 1, 2018, through March 31, 2027, and with no change to the minimum annual guarantee of \$650,000 with two one-year options to extend. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 2 - Fewer, Walton Excused: 1 - Mandelman

200189 [Concession Lease Amendment - HFF-BRH SFO, LLC dba Farmerbrown -Extending Base Operating Term - \$1,000,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the Terminal 1 Boarding Area C Food and Beverage Concession Lease 8, Lease No. 16-0316, between HFF-BRH-SFO, LLC, dba Farmerbrown, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years for a total term of November 1, 2018, through October 31, 2027, with no changes to the minimum annual guarantee of \$1,000,000 with two one-year options to extend. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

200190 [Concession Lease Amendment - Stellar Partners, Inc. dba The New Stand -Extending Base Operating Term - \$814,144 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the International Terminal Newsstand and Specialty Retail Concession Lease 2, Lease No. 17-0208, between Stellar Partners, Inc., dba The New Stand, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years for a total term of August 1, 2018, through July 31, 2027, with no changes to the minimum annual guarantee of \$814,144 with two one-year options to extend. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 2 - Fewer, Walton Excused: 1 - Mandelman

200191 [Concession Lease Amendment - DFS Group, LP dba DFS Watches - Extending Base Operating Term - \$380,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the International Terminal Newsstand and Specialty Retail Concession Lease 3, Lease No. 17-0209, between DFS Group, LP, dba DFS Watches, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years for a total term of February 1, 2019, through January 31, 2028, with no change to the minimum annual guarantee of \$380,000 with two one-year options to extend. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

200192 [Concession Lease Amendment - Canonica New York, LLC dba The Chocolate Market - Extending Base Operating Term - \$280,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the International Terminal Newsstand and Specialty Retail Concession Lease 4, Lease No. 17-0210, between Canonica New York, LLC, dba The Chocolate Market, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years for a total term of July 1, 2018, through June 30, 2027, with no changes to the minimum annual guarantee of \$280,000 with two one-year options to extend. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 2 - Fewer, Walton Excused: 1 - Mandelman

200193 [Concession Lease Amendment - Stellar Partners, Inc. dba The New Stand -Extending Base Operating Term - \$1,531,761 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the International Terminal Newsstand and Specialty Retail Concession Lease 5, Lease No. 17-0211, between Stellar Partners, Inc., dba The New Stand, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years for a total term of August 1, 2018, through July 31, 2027, with no changes to the minimum annual guarantee of \$1,531,761 with two one-year options to extend. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

200194 [Concession Lease Amendment - SSP America, Inc. dba The Manufactory Food Hall and Marina's Café - Extending Base Operating Term - \$495,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the International Terminal "A" Food Hall and Café Concession Lease No. 17-0238, between SSP America, Inc., dba The Manufactory Food Hall and Marina's Café, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years for a total term of January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2030, and with no changes to the minimum annual guarantee of \$495,000 and two one-year options to extend. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 2 - Fewer, Walton Excused: 1 - Mandelman

200195 [Concession Lease Amendment - Andre-Boudin Bakeries, Inc. dba Boudin Bakery & Café - Extending Base Operating Term - \$330,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the International Terminal "A" Historic Restaurant Concession Lease No. 17-0239, between Andre-Boudin Bakeries, Inc., dba Boudin Bakery & Café, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years for a total term of October 1, 2018, through September 30, 2030, with no changes to the minimum annual guarantee of \$330,000 with two one-year options to extend. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

200196 [Concession Lease Amendment - Black Point Coffee SFO, LLC dba Black Point Café - Extending Base Operating Term - \$165,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the International Terminal "A" Coffee Kiosk Concession Lease No. 17-0254, between Black Point Coffee SFO, LLC, dba Black Point Café, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years for a total term of January 1, 2020, through December 31, 2028, with no changes to the minimum annual guarantee of \$165,000 with two one-year options to extend. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 2 - Fewer, Walton Excused: 1 - Mandelman

200197 [Concession Lease Amendment - Canonica New York, LLC dba The Chocolate Market - Extending Base Operating Term - \$225,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee] Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the Terminal 2 Specialty Retail Concession Lease 3,

Lease No. 18-0073, between Canonica New York, LLC, dba The Chocolate Market, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years for a total term of April 6, 2019, through April 5, 2028, with no change to the minimum annual guarantee of \$225,000. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

200198 [Concession Lease Amendment - SSP America, Inc. dba Sweet Maple - Extension of Base Operating Term - \$250,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the Terminal 2 Casual Dining Food & Beverage Concession Lease 6, Lease No. 18-0074, between SSP America, Inc., dba Sweet Maple, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years, for a total term of May 1, 2019, through April 30, 2031, with no change to the minimum annual guarantee of \$250,000. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 2 - Fewer, Walton Excused: 1 - Mandelman

200199 [Concession Lease Amendment - InMotion Entertainment Group, LLC dba iStore -Extension of Base Operating Term - \$405,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the Terminal 1 Retail Concession Lease 1, Lease No. 18-0203, between InMotion Entertainment Group, LLC, dba iStore, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years, for a total term of March 1, 2019, through July 31, 2031, with no change to the minimum annual guarantee of \$405,000. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

200200 [Concession Lease Amendment - Paradies Lagardere @ SFO 2018, LLC dba Mills Cargo - Extension of Base Operating Term - \$700,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the Terminal 1 Retail Concession Lease 2, Lease No. 18-0204, between Paradies Lagardere @ SFO 2018, LLC, dba Mills Cargo, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years, for a total term of March 1, 2019, through July 31, 2028, with no change to the minimum annual guarantee of \$700,000 with two one-year options to extend. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 2 - Fewer, Walton Excused: 1 - Mandelman

200201 [Concession Lease Amendment - Skyline Concessions, Inc. dba Skyline News -Extension of Base Operating Term - \$220,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the Terminal 1 Retail Concessions Lease 7, Lease No. 18-0208, between Skyline Concessions, Inc., dba Skyline News, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years, for a total term of March 1, 2019, through July 31, 2028, with no change to the minimum annual guarantee of \$220,000 with two one-year options to extend. (Airport Commission) 02/18/20: RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

200202 [Concession Lease Amendment - Bun Mee, LLC dba Bun Mee - Extension of Base Operating Term - \$365,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the Terminal 1 Food and Beverage Concession Lease 1, Lease No. 18-0209, between Bun Mee, LLC, dba Bun Mee, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years, for a total term of February 1, 2019, through July 31, 2031, with no change to the minimum annual guarantee of \$365,000. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 2 - Fewer, Walton Excused: 1 - Mandelman

200203 [Concession Lease Amendment - SSP America, Inc. dba The Little Chihuahua -Extension of Base Operating Term - \$365,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the Terminal 1 Food and Beverage Concession Lease 2, Lease No. 18-0210, between SSP America, Inc., dba The Little Chihuahua, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years, for a total term of February 1, 2019, through July 31, 2031, with no change to the minimum annual guarantee of \$365,000 with one two-year option to extend. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be AMENDED on Page 1, Line 7, by replacing 'February 1, 2019' with 'August 1, 2019'. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 2 - Fewer, Walton

Excused: 1 - Mandelman

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the Terminal 1 Food and Beverage Concession Lease 2, Lease No. 18-0210, between SSP America, Inc., dba The Little Chihuahua, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years, for a total term of August 1, 2019, through July 31, 2031, with no change to the minimum annual guarantee of \$365,000 with one two-year option to extend. (Airport Commission)

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution RECOMMENDED AS AMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

200204 [Concession Lease Amendment - Amy's Kitchen Restaurant Operating Company, LLC dba Amy's Drive Through - Extension of Base Operating Term - \$475,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the Terminal 1 Food and Beverage Concession Lease 3, Lease No. 18-0211, between Amy's Kitchen Restaurant Operating Company, LLC, dba Amy's Drive Through, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years, for a total term of February 1, 2019, through July 31, 2031, with no change to the minimum annual guarantee of \$475,000 with one two-year option to extend. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 2 - Fewer, Walton Excused: 1 - Mandelman

200205 [Concession Lease Amendment - Paradies Lagardere @ SFO 2018 (F&B), LLC -Extension of Base Operating Term - \$600,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the Terminal 1 Food and Beverage Concession Lease 4, Lease No. 18-0212, between Paradies Lagardere @ SFO 2018 (F&B), LLC, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years, for a total term of February 1, 2019, through July 31, 2031, with no change to the minimum annual guarantee of \$600,000 with one two-year option to extend. (Airport Commission) 02/18/20: RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

02/10/20, RECEIVED TROM DEL'ARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

200206 [Concession Lease Amendment - Tastes on the Fly San Francisco, LLC dba Starbird - Extension of Base Operating Term - \$310,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the Terminal 1 Food and Beverage Concession Lease 5, Lease No. 18-0213, between Tastes on the Fly San Francisco, LLC, dba Starbird, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years, for a total term of February 1, 2019, through July 31, 2031, with no change to the minimum annual guarantee of \$310,000 with one two-year option to extend. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 2 - Fewer, Walton Excused: 1 - Mandelman

200207 [Concession Lease Amendment - Soaring Food Group, LLC dba Illy's Cafe -Extension of Base Operating Term - \$385,000 Minimum Annual Guarantee]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the Terminal 1 Food and Beverage Concession Lease 6, Lease No. 18-0214, between Soaring Food Group, LLC, dba Illy's Café, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to extend the base operating term of the Lease by two years, for a total term of February 1, 2019, through July 31, 2031, with no change to the minimum annual guarantee of \$385,000 with one two-year option to extend. (Airport Commission)

02/18/20; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/03/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Cathy Widener (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Fewer moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 2 - Fewer, Walton Excused: 1 - Mandelman

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the Budget and Finance Committee adjourned at the hour of 1:09 p.m.

N.B. The Minutes of this meeting set forth all actions taken by the Budget and Finance Committee on the matters stated, but not necessarily in the chronological sequence in which the matters were taken up.